
Clarifications 
Compensation and Benefits Consultant 

RFP # 189-20-07 
 
 

1. Do you need job descriptions updated?   
 
No  

 

2. How many employees are being reviewed as part of this study?  
 
34 positions, over 300 employees 
 

 

3. How many job classifications / titles are associated with the number of employees?  
 
34 

 

4. Do you have a projected budget range for this project? 
 
The budget for this project is modest as we expect the salary study to be built of industry 

accepted salaries and not require extensive new effort on the part of the selected firm. 

 

5. Do you have a projected timeline for this project? 
 

There is no set timeline, however it is preferred that this effort be completed within 3 to 6 

months. 

 

6. How many employees will be included in the study?  
 
See Question 2 

 

7. How many total classifications (job descriptions) are included in the study that represent 
covered employees?  
 
See Question 2  

 



8. Is there a preferred timeline for completing the study? 
 
See Question 5 

9. How many employees are to be included in the study?  

See Question 2 

 

10. How many unique job titles or job classifications are included in the study? 

 

See Question 2  

 

 

11. Are the job descriptions up to date and accurate? If not, Does GRTC want the consultant to 
update job descriptions?  

 

The job descriptions are up to date and accurate and not in need of updating. 

 

12. Does GRTC currently utilize a job evaluation system to maintain internal equity? If not, is GRTC 
interested in implementing a job evaluation system?  

 

GRTC has a performance evaluation system where employees are evaluated annually based on 
performance.  We are not interested at this time. 

 

13. Does GRTC want to include both public and private sector surveys for comparison in the market 
survey? Private sector companies rarely respond to custom surveys, so we utilize reputable 
published sources to represent the private sector. Is that an acceptable alternative to GRTC? 

 

 No, the market survey should only include the public sector. 



 

14. Does GRTC want the consultant to calculate the dollar value of the total compensation or just 
provide the pay range data collected in the market survey, the types of benefits offered, and the 
cost of benefits?   

 

The consultant should provide the pay range data collected, the types of benefits offered and 
the cost of benefits.  

 

 

15. Due to COVID-19, staff is currently working remotely. Will you accept the proposal via email or 
electronic submittal in lieu of hard copies or USBs?  

Yes 

16. Since all of our staff are working remotely due to COVID-19, will GRTC accept electronic/scanned 
signatures for the original proposal and certification forms? 

Yes 

17. Our proposal will not contain any confidential or proprietary information. Do we need to submit 
a “redacted” copy of our proposal? 

 

No, however please include a statement stating the un-redacted copy of your proposal is 
acceptable to circulate to the public.  
 

18. Does GRTC have a budget amount for this project? 

See Question 4. 
  

19. What is the anticipated timeline for the project? 

See Question 5. 

 

 

 



 

20. Can you please clarify the information GRTC requires in attachment D? 

 

Proposers with questions should write their questions on Attachment D and send them directly 
to Tonya Thompson for a response.    

 

21. Why is GRTC conducting this study at this time?  
 
GRTC wants to ensure it is able to retain existing employees and is recruiting a highly qualified 
candidate pool by offering compensation and benefits packages that are competitive and based 
on experience, skills, abilities and the market. 

 

 

22. Is GRTC experiencing issues in attracting and retaining employees?  What jobs?  
 
GRTC is not experiencing issues in attracting and retaining employees. 

 

23. What is your current compensation system?  
 
 

GRTC currently has nine (9) pay grades with salary ranges within each grade.  At no time shall an 
employee’s salary exceed the maximum of the pay grade. 
 

 

24. What is the anticipated timeline for the study? 
 

See Question 5 

25. What is the budget allocated for the study? 
 
See Question 4 

26. How many employees are in scope for this engagement? 
 
See Question 2 
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27. Are executives in scope for this engagement? 
 

  Yes 

28. How many unique jobs are part of this engagement? 
 
See Question 2 

 

29. Are any jobs in scope of the study represented by a union?  
 

Yes, bus operators and mechanics will be in the scope of this study and are represented by a 

union. GRTC would like a comparison of public and private wages for these positions.  

 

30. Does GRTC have any recent compensation surveys?  
 

GRTC has not completed a compensation survey within the last ten years. 
 

 

31. Does GRTC participate in any compensation surveys”? 
 
No, not recently. 

 

32. Does GRTC purchase any compensation surveys?  
 

No 
 

33. How are job descriptions currently managed?  Are they available electronically?  In what 
format?  
 
Job descriptions are Microsoft Word documents and are available electronically.  

 

34. Does GRTC wish to compare market benefits prevalence or values or both?  
 
GRTC would like to have both. 
 
 
 



35. GRTC mentioned internal equity.  To confirm, for this RFP, GRTC is looking for compensation 
practices that help maintain equity, not a formal statistical pay equity analysis.  
 
GRTC wants a statistical pay equity analysis. 

 

36. Is there an executive sponsor for this project?   
 
No 

 

37. What roles at GRTC will make up the primary project team?  
 
 Director of Human Resources, Director of Procurement, Chief of Staff 

 

 

38. Who will have the authority to make decisions on behalf of GRTC? 
 

Decision making authority will depend on the issues under consideration.  Ultimate authority 

rests with the Board of Directors and the CEO.  Various levels of decision making are delegated 

out as appropriate to job description and agency operational needs. 

 

39. Please identify key stakeholders/stakeholder groups and their titles. 
 

CEO, Chief of Staff, Director of HR and Chief of Finance 

 

40. Please provide samples of your current employee communications (e.g., emails, 
announcements, intranet, HR portal).  

 

GRTC uses various mechanisms of communications.  Please clarify the relevance of this 

information for the study?  

41. What communication media and channels does GRTC Transit System currently use? 
 
Facebook, Twitter, electronic board, email and flyers.  What is the relevance of this question to 
the study? 

 

 



42. When and how and do you typically communicate with employees about HR-related topics such 
as compensation? 
 
Salary and vacation are communicated annualy directly with the individual employee.  Other 
benefits are communicated via email, electronic boards, flyers as needed.  What is the relevance 
of this question to the study? 
 

 

43. How does GRTC Transit System provide internal training materials or sessions to HR, managers 
and/or leadership? 
 
 In-person and currently through Zoom. What is the relevance of this question to the study? 
 
 

 

44. How does GRTC Transit System socialize organizational changes with leadership team(s)? 
 
What is the relevance of this question to the study? 

 

45. With the COVID pandemic, is it possible to submit the proposal in electronic format using a 
secure portal and/or password protection? 

 

Yes, as long as staff has recurring, unlimited access to the proposal at all times for an indefinite 

period of time.  

 
46. The RFP indicates that “the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods/services 

described herein in accordance with the attached signed proposal or as mutually agreed upon 
by subsequent negotiation.”  Does this mean that bidders are agreeing to be bound by the 
terms of the RFP materials (including Exhibit A – Standard Terms and Conditions) and proposals 
by virtue of submitting a response to the RFP? 

 

Yes 

 

47. Does GRTC intend to provide a template contract or agreement to serve as the basis for the 
negotiations for the Contract to be entered into between bidders?  Or are the terms set forth in 
Exhibit A – Standard Terms and Conditions, the basis for such contract? 

 

No, the standard terms and conditions in Exhibit A are the basis for such contract.  
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48. If GRTC provides its own template contract or intends to rely on Exhibit A – Standard Terms and 
Conditions as the basis for the contract for the services, may bidders submit exceptions and/or 
request additions to such contract terms, or will they be disqualified for doing so? 

 

GRTC intends to award a Contract based on the terms, conditions, and attachments contained in 

this RFP.  Proposers are strongly advised to not take any exceptions.  Proposers shall submit 

proposals which respond to the requirements of the RFP.  An exception is not a response to an RFP 

requirement.  If an exception is taken, a “Notice of Exception” must be submitted with the proposal.  

The “Notice of Exception” must identify the specific point or points of exception and provide an 

alternative. 

Proposers are cautioned that exceptions to the terms, conditions, and attachments may result in 

rejection of the proposal. 

GRTC may, at its sole discretion, determine that a proposal with a Notice of Exception merits 

evaluation.  A proposal with a Notice of Exception not immediately rejected may be evaluated, but 

its competitive scoring will be reduced to reflect the importance of the exception.  Evaluation and 

negotiation will only continue with the Proposer if GRTC determines that a Contract in the best 

interest of GRTC may be achieved.  The Notice of Exception will be used as part of GRTC’s evaluation 

of the proposal, and, therefore, must be made known during the course of the proposing process.  

Comments and exceptions will not be considered after conclusion of the proposal process and the 

award of a contract. 

 

 

 

49. May bidders submit their own template contracts or form of agreement for review by GRTC and 
to serve as the basis for contract negotiations? 
 

Yes, however see conditions in Question 48. 

50. How many unique jobs are there as it relates to GRTC’s approximately 590 employees?  

GRTC is asking for a review of 34 unique jobs but there are other unique jobs that are 

not included in this survey. 

 



51. Does GRTC want a market pricing (recommended), custom survey (expensive), or for to 
make a recommendation in its proposal?  

This is a competitive process and GRTC is looking for standard industry rates.  The 
methodology is up to each proposer. 

 

52. Can you confirm that all employees are in the greater Richmond area?  The RFP mentions cost of 
living comparison but we wanted to confirm if GRTC is simply making sure the data is specific to 
greater Richmond, and not variations on parts of the greater Richmond Metropolitan area.  (ex 
north side v. south side v. west end v. short pump) 

 

 All employees are in greater Richmond and data should be specific to the greater Richmond 
area.  If the survey compares wages and salaries to a comparable firm outside of the RVA area, 
cost of living comparison should be included as a basis against the RVA region.   

 

53.  Do you currently have a compensation philosophy? If not, what have you been using to guide 
compensation decisions?  
 

Please see attached.  GRTC currently utilizes the salary bands we developed and evaluate those 
bands annually for increases.  

 

54. Do you have a classification system currently in place?  Are you interested in possibly improving 
it, or must the system be new?  
 
GRTC is satisfied with its current classification system.  Proposers are welcome to include best 
practices but are reminded that this is a competitive proposal process and GRTC is not looking 
for an elaborate or extensive study, just a reasonable comparison of ranges for salaries and 
wages and benefits. 

 

55. Are you requesting that a custom compensation survey of selected participants be conducted or 
are you looking to have benchmarking completed using publishing sources of market data? 
 
GRTC is okay with benchmarking using published sources of data.       

 

 

 



56.   Which benefits do you desire to include in the review, and what depth of analysis are you     
expecting? 

 

 Salary, vacation time, sick time, medical, dental, 401K/457 employer contribution, short term 

disability, pension, and other typical benefits packages.  If there are other benefits typically 

being provided in the industry not included by GRTC, GRTC asks that these be included as well. 

  

 


